
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
OCTOBER 24, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

October 24, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor A.C. Phipps – Evanswood Church 
of God 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Proposed Amendment to the Boundaries of the Downtown District of the 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA) 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along Major 
Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 2 

D-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  City Council Appointments:  Ethnic 
Issues Advisory Board 3 



CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 4 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 4 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  No Appointments 
Scheduled 5 

F-2 Marshall Field’s Fireworks Permit Application 5 

F-3 Resolution in Support of a Constitutional Amendment to Narrowly and Clearly 
Define the Term "Public Use" 5 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 7 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 7 

G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted 7 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 7 

H-1  No Council Referrals 7 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 7 

I-1  No Council Comments 7 



REPORTS: 7 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 7 

J-2 Department Reports: 7 

a) Report on Available Property for Sale at 1660 Square Lake Road....................... 7 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 7 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 7 

J-5  Calendar 7 

STUDY ITEMS: 7 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 7 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 7 

CLOSED SESSION:  No Closed Session Requested 8 

ADJOURNMENT 8 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 8 

Monday, November 14, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 8 
Monday, November 21, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 8 
Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 8 
Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 8 
Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 8 
Monday, January 9, 2006 Regular City Council ...................................................... 8 
Monday, January 23, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................... 8 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 24, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor A.C. Phipps – 
Evanswood Church of God 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Proposed Amendment to the Boundaries of the Downtown District of the 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA)  

 
Attached are memoranda from Miller Canfield, bond counsel, and financial advisor Bendzinski 
& Co.  Representatives from these firms will also be in attendance to discuss the mechanics of 
modifying the physical boundaries of the Downtown Development Authority District, as well as 
the financial implications of removing the proposed Monarch Development from the district.  
Additionally, enclosed are memoranda from City Management relative to donors vs. consumers 
of municipal services, and other DDA-related issues. 
 
Proposed Resolution – Version A 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council RECOMMENDS moving forward with the 
proposed amendments to the boundaries of the Downtown District of the Downtown 
Development Authority of the City of Troy and AUTHORIZES the City Administration to draft an 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 24, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

ordinance to AMEND the boundaries of the Downtown Development Authority and PLACE on a 
future City Council meeting not less than 60 days after the public hearing. 
 
Or 
 
Proposed Resolution – Version B 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council REFER this matter to the Downtown 
Development Authority for their RECOMMENDATION on an amendment to the Downtown 
Development Plan Area boundaries. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along Major 
Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 

 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert 
  
RESOLVED, That Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, 
Option A, be ADOPTED, as recommended by the Planning Commission, with the caveat that 
City Staff is DIRECTED to provide a report in six months on other areas where this retail use 
might be expanded and City Staff is further DIRECTED to provide a report by the end of this 
year listing the functional relationship as defined by the approvals from the Planning 
Commission. 
  
Yes: 
No: 
 
Or One of the Following Substitute Amendments: 
 
Proposed Substitute Amendment A – Planning Commission Version 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 24, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, 
Version A, be ADOPTED, as recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Or  
 
Proposed Substitute Amendment B – City Management Version 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
  
RESOLVED, That Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, 
Version B, be ADOPTED, as recommended by City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
D-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  City Council Appointments:  Ethnic 

Issues Advisory Board 
  
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10-  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by  Council (9) –  (4) 3 year terms & (5) 2 year terms 
 
Reuben T. Ellis Unexpired Term 09/30/07 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 24, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 6:00 PM Special-Joint DDA Meeting and the 7:30 PM 
Regular City Council Meeting of October 17, 2005 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 24, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  No Appointments 
Scheduled  

 
F-2 Marshall Field’s Fireworks Permit Application  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a fireworks permit be ISSUED to Zambelli Fireworks, Inc., of New Castle, 
PA, for the display of fireworks at the Oakland Mall on November 11, 2005. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Resolution in Support of a Constitutional Amendment to Narrowly and Clearly 

Define the Term "Public Use"  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The right of an individual to own property without the threat that his/her 
government will take their property and give it to a private entity for a non-public use is 
fundamental to democracy in the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, Eminent domain is the power of a government to take private property for public 
use; the 5th Amendment of the US Constitution and articles in many state constitutions allow 
this practice provided that fair compensation is made; and 
 
WHEREAS, Historically eminent domain has been used for public uses such as roads, parks, 
schools and other governmental functions; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1954, the United States Supreme Court began to erode individual property rights 
when it determined in Berman vs. Parker that government’s power of eminent domain could be 
used to seize property in order to remove “blighted” areas; and 
 
WHEREAS, The definition of a “blighted” area has become so expansive that in 1981 the 
Michigan Supreme Court allowed the City of Detroit to condemn a stable neighborhood called 
Poletown to make way for a General Motors plant; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 24, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, In 2004, the Michigan Supermen Court overturned the “Poletown” decision when it 
ruled on The County of Wayne v. Hathcock et al, and noted that:  “…if one’s ownership of 
private property is forever subject to the government’s determination that another private party 
would put one’s land to better use, then the ownership of real property is perpetually threatened 
by the expansion plans of any large discount retailer, “megastore”, or the like.”; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Supreme Court also noted in 2004 that:  “…we must overrule 
Poletown in order to vindicate our Constitution, protect the people’s property rights, and 
preserve the legitimacy of the judicial branch as the expositor – not creator – of fundamental 
law.”; and 
 
WHEREAS, On June 23, 2005, the United States Supreme Court, in a 5-4 decision, ruled in the 
case, Kelo vs. City of New London, Connecticut, that government may use eminent domain for 
the benefit of developers; and  
 
WHEREAS, United States Supreme Court Justice Sandra Day O’Connor said in her dissent to 
the Kelo decision:  “All private property is now vulnerable to being taken and transferred to 
another private owner, so long as it might be upgraded. The specter of condemnation hangs 
over all property.  Nothing is to prevent (local governments) from replacing any Motel 6 with a 
Ritz-Carlton, any home with a shopping mall, or any farm with a factory.”; and  
 
WHEREAS, Even though the Michigan Supreme Court, through a strict constitutional 
interpretation, reversed the Poletown decision and placed Michigan property owners in a more 
secure position for the immediate future than property owners in many other states, a future 
Michigan Supreme Court could reverse the current ruling, once again allowing the 
condemnation of private property for private developers where no public use is involved; and 
 
WHEREAS, During the 23 years the Poletown decision was the law of the land in the State of 
Michigan, many of Michigan’s residential and small business property owners were let down by 
their government as it, with little thought or care for their long term interests, took their property 
and gave it to private developers for the sole purpose of increasing the government’s tax base; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, United States Supreme Court Justice John Paul Stevens, in writing for the majority 
on the Kelo decision, pointed out that the Constitution does not preclude individual states “from 
placing further restrictions (on) the exercise of the taking power”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council URGES the Michigan 
Legislature to place an amendment to the State of Michigan Constitution on the ballot for the 
sole purpose of narrowly and clearly defining “public use” in a manner that is consistent with the 
2004 Michigan Supreme Court ruling (County of Wayne vs. Hathcock et al) on eminent domain 
that overturned the 1981 Poletown decision; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council COMMENDS the Michigan Supreme 
Court for their just and bold ruling in 2004 (County of Wayne vs. Hathcock et al) that overturned 
the Poletown decision; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 24, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That copies of this resolution BE FORWARDED to the Michigan 
Supreme Court, Governor Jennifer Granholm, the Oakland County legislative contingent in 
Lansing, and the Michigan Association of Counties. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted  
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
  

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Report on Available Property for Sale at 1660 Square Lake Road 
   
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted  

  
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 24, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION:  No Closed Session Requested 

ADJOURNMENT  

 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, November 14, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 21, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 28, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 5, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 19, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 9, 2006 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 23, 2006 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

 



campbellld
Text Box
C-01





































































 1

October 19, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development  
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – TABLED ITEM – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in 
the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
   
Two versions have been prepared for your consideration, the Planning Commission 
Version (Version A) and the City Management Version (Version B).  Both versions require 
a functional relationship with the attached industrial use.  The Planning Commission 
Version does not require common ownership.  The City Management Version requires that 
the retail uses must sell only products that are manufactured, fabricated or stored in the 
industrial portion of the building.  In addition, the retail and industrial uses must have 
common ownership.  These issues were brought up after the Planning Commission made 
a recommendation to City Council.   
 
In addition, City Council has an active motion that was postponed from the October 17, 
2005 Regular Meeting.  
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on July 12, 2005 and 
recommended approval of Version A.  City Management recommends approval of Version 
B.  The salient difference between the two versions is Version B (City Management 
Version) requires that there be a clearly defined functional relationship and common 
ownership between the industrial and retail uses; Version A (Planning Commission 
Version) does not include this requirement.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The concept of permitting limited retail uses in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District 
initiated from three directions.  City Management was charged by the City Manager, with 
the task of attacking blight and improving the economic sustainability of the industrial 
sector of the City.  At the same time the Planning Commission identified the City’s 
industrial sector is in need of reinvigoration and revitalization.  Finally, there are industrial 
land owners, such as Arie Leibovitz of Ari-El Enterprises, Inc., who approached City 
Management and the Planning Commission looking for alternatives for M-1 property 
located on Maple Road.  The subject property had interest from a sporting goods store, 
who wanted to locate a warehouse, corporate office and retail store in one location.  The 
building in question was typical of the Maple Road properties.  That is, there is a building 
with two distinct physical layouts, an office portion located on Maple Road and the 
industrial portion, behind the office. 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 2

City Management and Planning Commission studied the issue and investigated the 
situation, and it became apparent that the Maple Road properties have a presence from a 
marketing standpoint.  There is logical basis for the desirability to locate retail uses on 
Maple Road.  However, this is an experiment.  City Management suggests that limited 
retail uses be permitted on major thoroughfares and then studied for at least 12 months to 
determine if it should be expanded. 
 
The intent of the proposed ZOTA is to permit up to 25% of the gross floor area of industrial 
buildings in the M-1 district to be used for retail purposes.  This will provide more 
opportunities for reuse of vacant industrial buildings along major thoroughfares, with 
minimal negative impacts.  The most significant issue associated with retail and industrial 
uses sharing buildings will be the availability of adequate parking.  City Management and 
the Planning Commission recognize that industrial properties will have challenges in 
achieving the retail parking requirements.  These issues will be resolved on an individual 
property basis with the site plan approval process. 
 
There is concern over expanding retail uses to the entire M-1 district.  Rental rates for 
property in the M-1 District are significantly lower than in retail districts.  According to City 
records, industrial buildings lease for approximately $4 per square foot.  This is 
significantly lower than lease rates for strip retail plaza space ($12 to $14 per square foot) 
and the Somerset Collection ($40 to $100 per square foot).  This discrepancy creates an 
unfair advantage for M-1 property owners over established retail properties, which much 
pay significantly higher rent.  Furthermore, it would encourage random retail uses of a low 
quality throughout the M-1 District.  This could have a detrimental effect on established 
retail and industrial properties.    
 
There are approximately 659 acres of property in the City zoned B-1, B-2, B-3 or H-S.  
While, there are 1961 acres of M-1 property in the City.  If you eliminate four large 
properties totaling approximately 167 acres that are used for non-industrial purposes 
(Cambridge Crossing, Homewood Suites Hotel, Midtown Square and Oakland Executive 
Airport), the total area of M-1 property is 1793 acres.  There is approximately three times 
more area zoned M-1 than B-1, B-2, B-3 and H-S in the City.  The potential impacts of 
permitting uncontrolled retail uses in M-1 on the established business districts could be 
devastating.  The following table summarizes the pros and cons of permitting retail uses 
throughout the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District: 
 

Pros and Cons  
Permitting Retail Uses Throughout the Entire M-1 District  

 Pros Cons 
Re-use of vacant buildings throughout the 
entire City. 

Unfair competition because of lower rental 
rates, compared to commercial properties. 

 Increased traffic above and beyond industrial 
levels. 

 Creation of commercial nodes competing with 
established commercial centers. 

 Promotes random retail uses in second-class 
locations. 

 Potential elimination of M-1 property. 



 3

The total area of M-1 property on major thoroughfares is 757 acres.  If you eliminate the 64 
acres used by the Oakland Executive Airport, the total area of M-1 property on major 
thoroughfares in 693 acres.  This is only slightly more area than all of the property in the 
City zoned B-1, B-2, B-3 or H-S.  It seems logical to permit retail on major thoroughfares 
initially and have an opportunity to study the impacts before permitting retail in all M-1 
districts.  The following table summarizes the pros and cons of requiring that M-1 
properties with 25% retail uses must be located on a major thoroughfare: 
 

Pros and Cons  
Requiring 25% Retail in M-1 on Major Thoroughfares Only 

 Pros Cons 
Keeps increased traffic to major 
thoroughfares, which are designed for 
significant traffic volumes. 

Retail would not be permitted on internal 
streets. 

The Sign Ordinance (Chapter 85) permits 
additional signs on major thoroughfares. 

Potential elimination of industrial sites. 

Limits the scope of retail uses in M-1.   
Provides exposure on major 
thoroughfares for retail uses in M-1. 

 

 
City Management recommends that a functional relationship be defined as retail uses 
selling only those products, or products directly accessory, that are manufactured, 
fabricated or stored in the industrial portion of the building.  This will ensure a clear 
relationship between the two uses.  Without a clear definition, there could be questionable 
claims of a functional relationship between retail and industrial uses.  For example, the 
industrial portion of the building could be used to manufacture flooring.  The retail portion 
could be a shoe store, with the workers walking on the installed flooring as they sold 
shoes.    
 
This definition would not eliminate the potential for selling accessory items related to the 
primary item being sold.  For example, if a tile manufacturer sold tiles that were 
manufactured in the back of the building, the manufacturer could sell glue, grout and 
trowels.  If accessory sales are permitted, they should be limited to products clearly 
accessory to the product that is manufactured, fabricated or stored in the industrial portion 
of the building.    
 
It should be noted that there are ongoing projects that will have the effect of assisting with 
internal M-1 vacancies.  There is a City Council Public Hearing scheduled for November 
14, 2005 for ZOTA–201.  If approved, this text amendment would permit commercial 
indoor recreation uses throughout the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District.  In addition it is 
anticipated that the ongoing Maple Road Corridor Study will identify opportunities for 
vacant industrial properties.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4

Attachments: 
1. Draft ZOTA 216 Planning Commission Version (Version A). 
2. Draft ZOTA 216 City Management Version (Version B). 
3. Minutes from July 12, 2005 Planning Commission meeting. 

 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: File/ ZOTA 216 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 216 Commercial Uses in M-1\CC Public Hearing Memo 10 24 05.doc 
 



 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 
Version A - Planning Commission Version 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Article III of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a 
new section 28.30.09 permitting retail uses subject to Special Use Approval in 
the M-1 Light Industrial District, to read as follows:  
 
28.30.09 Retail uses, subject to the following: 
 

A. The retail use occupies no more than twenty-five percent 
(25%) of the gross floor area of a building that is otherwise 
used for industrial purposes.   

 
B. There shall be a functional relationship between the retail use 

and the industrial use. 
 
C. The building shall front on a major thoroughfare as classified 

on the City of Troy Transportation Plan. 
 
28.30.109 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 216 Commercial Uses in M-1\ZOTA 216 CC Public Hearing Draft PC Version 
10 17 05.doc 



 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

Version B – City Management Version 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Article III of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to add a 
new section 28.30.09 permitting retail uses subject to Special Use Approval in 
the M-1 Light Industrial District, to read as follows:  
 
28.30.09 Retail uses, subject to the following: 
 

A. The retail use shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the 
gross floor area of a building that is used for industrial 
purposes.   

 
B. There shall be a functional relationship between the retail use 

and the industrial use, as determined by one of the following: 
 

i. The retail use sells only products, or products directly 
accessory thereto, that are manufactured or fabricated 
in the industrial portion of the building. 

 
   ii. The retail use sells only products, or products directly 

accessory thereto, that are stored in the industrial 
portion of the building. 

 
C. The industrial and retail uses shall have common ownership. 
 
D. The building shall front on a major thoroughfare as classified 

on the City of Troy Transportation Plan. 
 



28.30.109 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 
will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
 
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 



 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 216 Commercial Uses in M-1\ZOTA 216 CC Public Hearing Draft City Mgt 
Version 10 17 05.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 12, 2005 
 

16 

13. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 216) – 
Article 28.00.00 Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to additional retail along major thoroughfares in the M-1 
zoning district.  Mr. Miller reported that City Management recommends approval 
of ZOTA 216 as printed on the draft ZOTA dated June 27, 2005.   
 
Mr. Wright pointed out a typographical error in Section 28.30.09 (A).  The word 
“is” should be deleted.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Arie Leibovitz of Ari-El Enterprises, 29548 Southfield Road, Southfield, was 
present.  Mr. Leibovitz identified himself as the interested party who brought the 
matter to the attention of the City as a desire and need to accommodate flexibility in 
properties along the major arteries.  Mr. Leibovitz, owner of numerous buildings 
along the Maple Road corridor, encouraged the members to support the text 
amendment that would revitalize some of the buildings that are becoming 
dysfunctional for the industrial use along the corridor.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-122 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28.30.09, pertaining to additional retail uses along major 
thoroughfares in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District, be amended as printed on 
the Proposed Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment, subject to the correction of one typographical error in item A of the 
proposed text. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the proposed amendment is too restrictive and should not 
be limited to major thoroughfares.   



CITY COUNCIL / DDA JOINT MEETING MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

1 

A Special-Joint Meeting of the Troy City Council and the Troy Downtown Development Authority was 
held Monday, October 17, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, 
Michigan 48084. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

ROLL CALL: 

CITY COUNCIL PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent) 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 
Chairman Alan M. Kiriluk 
Michael W. Culpepper (Absent) 
Stuart Frankel (Absent) 
David R. Hay 
Michele Hodges 
William Kennis 
Daniel MacLeish 
Carol A. Price (Absent) 
Ernest C. Reschke 
Louise E. Schilling 
Douglas J. Schroeder 
Harvey Weiss 
G. Thomas York 

 
ALSO PRESENT:   John Szerlag 

Lori Grigg-Bluhm 
Brian Murphy 
Doug Smith 
Nino Licari 
Mark Miller 
Tonni Bartholomew 
       

Mayor Schilling provided an opening statement on behalf of the City of Troy. 
 
Chairman Kiriluk added comments on behalf of the Downtown Development Authority 
 
Consensus was reached by a vote by voice to follow simple ground rules as described by John 
Szerlag. 
 
John Szerlag moderated an interest-based discussion with the City Council and Planning 
Commission on accessory building footprint ratios, garage door height and commercial vehicle 
regulations. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL / DDA JOINT MEETING MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

2 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:09 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
  

 
 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, October 17, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM 
 
Pastor Vince Messina of Woodside Bible Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent) 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak 
 
Resolution #2005-10-470 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak’s absence at the Special-Joint DDA meeting and 
the Regular City Council meeting of October 17, 2005 is EXCUSED due to being out of the 
county. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations Scheduled 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along Major 
Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT), of the Zoning Ordinance, 
Option A, be ADOPTED, as recommended by the Planning Commission, with the caveat that 
City Staff is DIRECTED to provide a report in six months on other areas where this retail use 
might be expanded and City Staff is further DIRECTED to provide a report by the end of this 
year listing the functional relationship as defined by the approvals from the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone
 
Resolution #2005-10-471 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – Additional Retail Along 
Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District be POSTPONED until the 
Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, October 24, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application – North Side of Maple Road, West of Blaney, Section 29, M-1 

to B-3 (Z 708)  
 
Resolution #2005-10-472 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the M-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located on the north side of Maple Road, 
west of Blaney, Section 29, being approximately 1.687 acres in size, is described in the 
following legal description and illustrated on the attached drawing:  
 
T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 29 
 
Lots 8, 20, 21, and 22, and Outlot “A” of Supervisors Plat No. 23, (Liber 15, page 58, of 
Oakland County Plats).  Containing ±1.687 ac. more or less, and subject to restrictions and 
easements of record. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
C-3 Rezoning Application – South Side of Woodslee Street, East of Rochester Road, 

Section 27, M-1 to R-2 (Z 709) 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

Resolution #2005-10-473  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the M-1 to R-2 rezoning request, located on the south side of Woodslee 
Street, east of Rochester Road, Section 27, being 600 square feet in size, is described in the 
following legal description and illustrated on the attached drawing: 
 
T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 27 
 
Commencing at the southeast corner of said Section 27; thence N 00°08’14” E, 899.83 ft. 
(recorded as N 01°32’25”E); thence N 89°41’56” W, 166.92 ft. (recorded as N 89°41’56” W) to a 
point on the east line of Stumpf’s Beech Grove Subdivision (Liber 32, pages 11 & 12 of Oakland 
County Plats); thence along said east line N 00°00’00” W, 123.01 ft. (recorded as N 01°24’11” 
E) to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing N 00°00’00” W, 120.00 ft.; thence S 89°45’00” 
E, 5.00 ft.; thence S 00°00’00E, 120.00 ft.; thence N 89°45’00” W, 5.00 ft. to the Point of 
Beginning.  Containing 600 sq. ft. of land, more or less, and subject to restrictions and 
easements of record. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Banquet Services 
 
Resolution #2005-10-474 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, On October 21, 2002, a three-year contract to provide Banquet Services with an 
option to renew for three additional years was awarded to the highest scoring bidder, The San 
Marino Club (Resolution  #2002-10-570-E-9). 
 
WHEREAS, The San Marino Club agrees to exercise the option to renew the contract for three 
additional years. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the additional three-year option to renew the 
contract is hereby EXERCISED with the San Marino Club under the same contract prices, 
terms, and conditions expiring on August 31, 2008, at a per plate cost including gratuity of 
$39.00 for the two (2) appreciation banquets and $20.00 for the employee holiday party. 
  
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-10-475 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-6 and E-7, which shall be considered after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of October 3, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mosquito Control   
 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On April 12, 2004, a two-year contract with an option to renew for one additional 
year to provide mosquito control was awarded to the low bidder, Advanced Pest Management 
Co. Inc. of Fenton, MI, (Resolution #2004-04-187-E6); and 
 
WHEREAS, Advanced Pest Management Co. Inc., has agreed to exercise the option to renew 
for one additional year under the same terms and conditions at 2005 prices; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to RENEW the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Advanced Pest Management Co. Inc., to provide mosquito control to various 
sites under the same terms and conditions at 2005 prices, to expire December 31, 2006.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Tandem-Axle Dual Wheel Trailer – 12-Ton Capacity   
 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-4b 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) Felling Tandem-Axle Dual Wheel Trailer 
Model FT-24-2 is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, AIS 
Construction Equipment of Lenox, MI for an estimated total cost of $13,300.00, as detailed in 
the bid tabulation opened August 24, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Large 

Capacity Riding Rotary Mower with Cozy Cab ROPS   
 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) large capacity riding rotary mower from 
Spartan Distributors is hereby APPROVED through the State of Michigan MiDEAL Program 
(formerly the Extended Purchasing Program) at an estimated cost of $58,452.75. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the purchase of the Cozy Cab ROPS with windshield wiper, 
defroster, emergency flashers, heater, headlights, and air conditioner from Spartan Distributors 
is AUTHORIZED at an estimated cost of $8,064.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Type “K” Copper 

Tubing   
 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase Type “K” Copper Tubing is hereby AWARDED to the 
low bidder SLC Meter Service, Inc. of Davisburg, MI, for an estimated total cost of $48,066.00, 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 10, 2005, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-5 Private Agreement for T.G.I. Friday’s – Project No. 05.918.3 
 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Drury Inns, Inc., is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main, storm sewer, paving and soil erosion controls on the site and in the 
adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Announcement of Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Year 2002 Project Description Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That a Public Hearing be SCHEDULED before the Troy City Council on 
November 14th, 2005 at 7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, for the 
purpose of hearing public comments on the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Year 2002 Project Description Amendment. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

E-9 Private Agreement for National Electrical Contractors Association – Project No. 
05.902.3 

 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and National Electrical Contractors Association, S.E. 
Michigan Chapter, is hereby APPROVED for the installation of water main, paving and sidewalk 
on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
E-10 Approval of Conveyance of Easement from City of Troy to Detroit Edison 

Company and Authorization for Signatures – Sidwell #88-20-13-100-051 – Police 
Fire Training Center 

 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for underground utilities from the City of Troy to 
Detroit Edison Company, being part of property having Sidwell #88-20-13-100-051, is hereby 
APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, 
copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Gerback, as Member of 300 Park Venture, LLC v Troy 
 
Resolution #2005-10-475-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in the matter of James Gerback, as Member of 300 Park Venture, LLC v City of 
Troy and to pay all expenses and to RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses to adequately 
represent the City.  
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-6 Announcement of Public Hearing – Request to Reprogram and Waive Recapture 

CDBG 2003 Funds 
 
Resolution #2005-10-476-E-6 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That a Public Hearing be SCHEDULED before the Troy City Council on 
November 14th, 2005 at 7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, for the 
purpose of hearing public comments on the addition of Water Sewer Improvements for 
Charnwood Subdivision Area, Section 6 to the list of CDBG projects for 2003; the re-
programming of program year 2003 unspent funds from Flood Drain Improvements to Water 
Sewer Improvements, and to waive the recapture of 2003 CDBG funds.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
E-7 Announcement of Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

2006 Application 
 
Resolution #2005-10-476-E-7 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That a Public Hearing be SCHEDULED before the Troy City Council on 
November 14th, 2005 at 7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, for the 
purpose of hearing public comments on the adoption of the Community Development Block 
Grant 2006 application in the amount of $166,316.00. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee and Youth Council 

 
 (a) Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
Jeffrey Stewart Term Expires 11/01/08 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

Lisa Martinico Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by  Council (9) –  (4) 3 year terms & (5) 2 year terms 
 
Reuben T. Ellis Unexpired Term 09/30/07 
 
Youth Council 
Appointed by Council - (13) – 1 year 
 
Joseph Niemiec Unexpired Term 06/01/06 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone
 
Resolution #2005-10-477 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed appointment to the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board be 
POSTPONED until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, October 24, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2005-10-478 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
Jeffrey Stewart Term Expires 11/01/08 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
Lisa Martinico Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
Youth Council 
Appointed by Council - (13) – 1 year 
 
Joseph Niemiec Unexpired Term 06/01/06 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
 
F-2 Vacation of Consent Judgment – Troy Long Lake, L.L.C. 
 
Resolution #2005-10-479 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Stipulated Order for Vacation of Consent Judgment in the matter of Troy 
Long Lake, L.L.C., a Michigan Corporation, and the Successor in Interest to Three Plus 
Corporation, a Michigan Corporation  v. City of Troy, et. al., (Oakland County Circuit Court Case 
No. 87-340985 AW) is hereby APPROVED CONTINGENT UPON satisfactory proof that Troy 
Long Lake, L.L.C. is the owner of the property; the Mayor and Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the document on behalf of the City of Troy, and a copy of the Consent Judgment 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Assistant City Attorney is AUTHORIZED TO SIGN the 
Stipulated Order for Vacation of Consent Judgment and ENTER it with the Court but only after 
such time as Troy Long Lake, L.L.C. presents evidence acceptable to the City Attorney that it is 
the owner of the property. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
F-3 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Daawat Indian Cuisine 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Resolution #2005-10-480a 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That the request from RAHI ENTERPRISE, INC., to transfer ownership of a 2005 
Class C licensed business with official permit (food), entertainment permit, and new Specially 
Designated Merchant (SDM), to be located at 3875-3877 Rochester Rd, Troy, MI 48098, 
Oakland County, from Auburn Hills Entertainment, INC. (A Delaware Corporation) “above all 
others” be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-10-480b 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Stine   
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with RAHI ENTERPRISE, INC., to transfer ownership of a 2005 
Class C licensed business with official permit (food), entertainment permit, and new Specially 
Designated Merchant (SDM), to be located at 3875-3877 Rochester Rd, Troy, MI 48098, 
Oakland County, from Auburn Hills Entertainment, INC. (A Delaware Corporation) “above all 
others”, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
F-4 Traffic Committee Recommendations – September 21, 2005 
 
Resolution #2005-10-481 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
a) No Changes at Sandshores and Walker 
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made at Sandshores and Walker. 
 
b) Parking be Prohibited on the East Side of English from 30 Feet South of the 5350 

Driveway to the 2687 Driveway, Between 7 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. School Days Only; 
and Parking be Prohibited on the East Side of Blair North of the Driveway at 2680 
to English, Between 7 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. School Days Only 

 
RESOLVED, That parking BE PROHIBITED on the east side of English from 30 feet south of 
the 5350 driveway to the 2687 driveway, between 7 a.m. and 4 p.m. school days only; 
 
RESOLVED, That parking BE PROHIBITED on the east side of Blair north of the driveway at 
2680 to English, between 7 a.m. and 4 p.m. school days only. 
 
c) No Installation of 3-WAY STOP Signs at Heatherwood and Northfield Parkway, but 

Installation of an ADVISORY Sign on Southbound Northfield Parkway Indicating a 
Hidden Intersection Ahead in a Location North of the Intersection  

 
RESOLVED, That 3-way STOP signs NOT BE INSTALLED at Heatherwood and Northfield 
Parkway, but an advisory sign BE INSTALLED on southbound Northfield Parkway indicating 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

that there is a hidden intersection ahead, in a location north of the intersection to be determined 
by the traffic engineer. 
 
d) No Changes be Made to the Intersection at Glyndeboune/Chalgrove/Dalesford 
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made to the Glyndebourne/Chalgrove/Dalesford 
intersection. 
 
e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at Cambridge Crossing 1, Maple 

Road  
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at Cambridge Crossing 1, Maple Road. 
 
f) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at Regents Park - Alisop 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at Regents Park – Alisop. 
 
g) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at Regents Park - Melcombe 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at Regents Park – Melcombe. 
 
h) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at Rochester Commons Condos 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at Rochester Commons Condos. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
F-5 Dispatch, Lock-Up, and Animal Control Services Agreement with the City of 

Clawson 
 
Resolution #2005-10-482 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the agreement between the City of Troy and the City of Clawson for 
dispatch, lock-up, and animal control services be APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

F-6 Contract Ratification – Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) and City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2005-10-483 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That a Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of Troy and TPOA for 
the period July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2008 is hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the 
City of Troy, and the Employer, the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
final agreement. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
F-7 Proposed Amendment – Long Lake Crossings 
 
Resolution #2005-10-484 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Second Amendment to the Consent Judgment in the matter of  
Transwestern Commercial Services, Successors in Interest to Zahav Investment Company, 
Plymouth Investment Company, and Biltmore Properties Company  v. City of Troy, (Oakland 
County Circuit Court Case No. 82-238690 CZ) is hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document on behalf of the City of Troy, and a copy of the 
Consent Judgment shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.30.00 Commercial Indoor 

Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District – November 14, 2005   
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted   
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2005-10-485 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 
Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss 
and take action on an item that does not appear on the agenda.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
Vote on Resolution to Schedule a Study Session 
 
Resolution #2005-10-486 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to SCHEDULE a Study 
Session at the earliest opportunity to discuss the merits of appointing an Audit Committee for 
the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Library Board/Final – June 2, 2005  
b) Troy Historic Commission/Final – June 28, 2005  
c) Troy Daze Advisory and Festival Committee/Draft – August 23, 2005  
d) Troy Youth Council/Final – August 24, 2005  
e) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – September 7, 2005 
f) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – September 7, 2005  
g) Troy Daze Advisory and Festival Committee/Draft – September 7, 2005  
h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – September 12, 2005  
i) Planning Commission Regular/Final – September 13, 2005  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – September 27, 2005 
k) Troy Youth Council/Draft – September 28, 2005 

Noted and Filed 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Memo from the IT Department Regarding Wireless Access at Community Center and 

Library  
b) Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the MML Annual Convention  
c) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of September, 2005  
d) Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for the National League of Cities 

Finance, Administration and Intergovernmental Relations Committee Meeting  
e) Purchasing Department Report – Auction Vehicle Sale on September 17, 2005 and 

BidNet Sale on August 14, 2005  
f) Development Report – October, 2005  
g) Memo from Parks and Recreation Regarding Civic Center Priority Task Force (CCPTF) 

Pathways 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Cindy Stewart and Staff from Tom Duszynski, Chair of Photo 

Contest, In Appreciation for the Support Provided at Troy Daze  
b) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Karry Rieth, Thanking the City of Troy and Vicki 

Richardson for Hosting Oakland County’s Community Development Block Grant Annual 
Application Workshop  

c) Letter of Appreciation to Captain Mayer from Terry Nerbonne, In Appreciation of the 
Cooperation with the Ferris State Internship Program  

d) Letter of Thanks to Cindy Stewart from Paul Scobie, In Appreciation of Her Contribution 
at the Troy Youth Assistance Annual Breakfast Meeting  

e) Letter of Thanks to Sergeant Robert Kowalski from Cathy Killian, Thanking the Troy 
Police Department for the Support During the Dr. Janet Jopke Memorial Fun Walk  

f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Vickie Lamerato, Troy Sports Center, In Appreciation 
of the Troy Police Department  

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Miscellaneous Resolution #05172 from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners In 

Support of a Constitutional Amendment for the Sole Purpose of Narrowly and Clearly 
Defining the Term “Public Use”  

b) Miscellaneous Resolution #05231 from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
Proclaiming the Month of October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-6  New Election Voting M-100 Optical Scan  

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 17, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

J-7  Letter from Oakland County Board of Commissioners Regarding Reimbursement 
of Expenses for Mosquito Control  

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:23 PM. 
 

 
 
 
 

 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



campbellld
Text Box
F-02



























  
October 19, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Doug Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM - Available Property for Sale at 1660 Square Lake 

Road 
 
Councilman Lambert has raised the issue of the 1.2-acre property for sale on 
Square Lake Road across from Kensington Church.  City-owned property 
previously acquired for the eventual establishment of a park and bike trail 
surrounds this property.  The City also owns the property directly across Square 
Lake (north side). 
 
The property currently has a single-family structure on it, and has a listing price 
of $254,900.  Our Assessing Department has attributed to it a market value of 
$294,899.   
 
Pros  
 
Acquisition of this parcel would square off our land with this property and as a 
larger parcel would be a more functional and valuable property.  The total 
acreage of the City-owned land south of Square Lake would increase from 13.1 
to 14.3 acres.  Attached is a map of a proposed layout of a park before adding 
this parcel.   
 
Cons  
 

• City has very limited capital to expand for these purposes; likely 
something else budgeted would have to be eliminated. 

• The City would have to maintain the parcel, although as open space in 
the short term grass cutting may be the only expense. 

• House will have to be demolished. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G: DS/pg\Memos to Mayor and CC\1660 E Square Lake Possible Acquisition 10-19-05 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



 
 
 

1660 East Square Lake Road 
Sidwell #88-20-11-201-022 

 

 

Existing City owned property 

Potential property to be acquired

 
 





mccombca
Text Box
J-05






	AGENDA:  October 24, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:  Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Proposed Amendment to the Boundaries of the Downtown Dis

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 216) – Additional 
	D-2 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  City Council App

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  No Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  No Appointments Scheduled
	F-2 Marshall Field’s Fireworks Permit Application
	F-3 Resolution in Support of a Constitutional Amendment to N

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted
	J-2 Department Reports:
	a) Report on Available Property for Sale at 1660 Square Lake Road

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted
	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:  No Closed Session Requested
	ADJOURNMENT



